
 

 
 

Dear Councillor,  
 
Central Lancashire Strategic Planning Joint Advisory Committee - 
Tuesday, 3rd October, 2023 
 
The next meeting of the Central Lancashire Strategic Planning Joint Advisory Committee is to be 
held on Tuesday, 3rd October, 2023 at Preston City Council commencing at 6.30 pm. 
 
The agenda and accompanying reports for consideration at the meeting are enclosed.  
 
The agenda papers are being sent to both appointed and substitute Members.  Any appointed 
Member who cannot attend are asked to first contact their substitute to see if he or she can attend 
instead.  Then please contact Ben Storey, Democratic and Member Services Officer either by 
telephone or email at the address below to give their apology with an indication of whether the 
substitute Member will attend.  
 
Yours sincerely 
 
Chris Sinnott 
Chief Executive 
 
Ben Storey, Democratic and Member Services Officer 
Democratic and Member Services Officer  
E-mail: ben.storey@southribble.gov.uk 
Tel: (01772) 625563 
 

Public Document Pack



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Central Lancashire Strategic Planning  
Joint Advisory Committee 

 
 

Agenda 
  
1. Appointment of Chair for the meeting   
  
2. Welcome & Introductions   
  
3. Apologies for absence   
  
4. Notification of Substitute Members (if any)   
  
5. Declarations of Interest   
 
 Members are reminded of their responsibility to declare any pecuniary interest in 

respect of matters contained in this agenda. 
 
If you have a pecuniary interest you must withdraw from the meeting. Normally you 
should leave the room before the business starts to be discussed. You do, however, have 
the same right to speak as a member of the public and may remain in the room to enable 
you to exercise that right and then leave immediately. In either case you must not seek to 
improperly influence a decision on the matter.  
  

6. Minutes of meeting Tuesday, 20 June 2023 of Central Lancashire Strategic Planning 
Joint Advisory Committee  (Pages 5 - 8) 

  
7. Part One Preferred Options Consultation Statement  (Verbal Report) 
 
 A verbal update will be presented at the meeting. 

  
8. Plan Making Reforms: Consultation on Implementation  (Pages 9 - 24) 
 
 Report enclosed. 

  
9. Dates of Future Meetings   
 
 Future meetings of the Central Lancashire Strategic Planning Joint Advisory Committee 

for the 2023/24 Municipal Year: - 
 

• 6.30pm Monday, 4 December 2023 – Chorley Council 
• 6.30pm Wednesday, 7 February 2024 – South Ribble Borough Council 
• 6.30pm Thursday, 28 March 2024 – Preston City Council 

  
10. Exclusion of Press and Public   
 



 To consider passing the following resolution [The following paragraph must be read out in 
full, by the Chair, and accepted by the Committee]: 
  
“That the public be excluded from this meeting during consideration of the following item 
of business on the grounds that there is likely to be disclosure of exempt information 
which is described in the paragraph(s) of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 
1972 which is specified against the heading to each item, and that in all the 
circumstances of the case the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the 
public interest in disclosing it.” 
  

11. Site Selection Update  (Verbal Report) 
 
 A verbal update will be presented at the meeting. 

  
12. Local Plan Update  (Pages 25 - 32) 
 
 Report of the Interim Deputy Chief Executive attached. 

 
 
 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
Central Lancashire Strategic Planning Joint Advisory Committee Tuesday 20 June 2023 

 

 
Minutes of 
 

Central Lancashire Strategic Planning Joint Advisory 
Committee 

Meeting date 
 

Tuesday, 20 June 2023 

Members present: Councillors James Flannery, Alistair Bradley, Javid Iqbal, 
Alistair Morwood, Craige Southern, Elaine Stringfellow, 
Caleb Tomlinson and County Councillor Alan Cullens 
 

Officers: Chris Hayward (Director of Development and Housing),Zoe 
Whiteside (Head of Spatial Planning), Elizabeth Hindle (Head 
of Planning and Enforcement), Marcus Hudson (Acting Head of 
Planning and Environment (Planning and Transport)), 
Katherine Greenwood (Principal Planning Officer), Carolyn 
Williams (Planning Policy Manager), Emma Price (Planning 
Policy Assistant Officer) and Ben Storey (Democratic and 
Member Services Officer) 
 

Other members 
attending virtually: 

County Councillor Sue Whittam and Councillors Terry Howarth 
and Kath Unsworth 
 

Public: 0 
  

83 Appointment of Chair for the meeting 
 
It was proposed that Councillor James Flannery be appointed as Chair for the 
meeting and was subsequently agreed unanimously by the Committee. 
  

84 Welcome & Introductions 
 
The Chair welcomed attendees to the meeting, advised members that the meeting 
was being streamed on Youtube and asked everyone to briefly introduce 
themselves. 
  

85 Apologies for absence 
 

Apologies for absence had been received from: 
         Councillor David Borrow – substituted by Councillor Javid Iqbal  
         County Councillor Michael Green.  

  
86 Declarations of Interest 

 
None declared. 
  

87 Minutes of meeting Monday, 27 March 2023 of Central Lancashire 
Strategic Planning Joint Advisory Committee 
 

Resolved: (Unanimously) 
  
That the minutes of the last meeting be agreed as an accurate record. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 6



2 
 

 
Central Lancashire Strategic Planning Joint Advisory Committee Tuesday 20 June 2023 

 

  
88 Preferred Options Part One Consultation Outcome 

 
The Local Plan Director/Head of Spatial Planning presented a verbal update on the 
work carried out by officers following the Preferred Options consultation earlier in the 
year with much of the work centred around collating and categorising the responses. 
Despite efforts to encourage responses to be submitted digitally via the online 
survey, a significant number of written responses had been received which required 
important and analysing. The detailed categorisation will enable a library of all 
consultations to be provided to the Planning Inspectorate when the draft plan is 
submitted. 
  
The Home teams were now reviewing the sites that had been submitted, including 
any new sites identified following the fourth call for sites period and were responding 
to queries raised through the process by interested parties. 
  
The result of this analysis work will be an outcomes report which will be presented at 
the next meeting of the Central Lancashire Strategic Planning Joint Advisory 
Committee. 
  
A query was raised if the Council’s had any incentives for developers to regenerate 
and bring back into use brownfield sites. In response, prioritisation of brownfield sites 
would be incorporated as part of the new Local Plan and could be strengthened 
further with a specific policy. It was noted that sites had been requested on four 
occasions with many brownfield sites included in the total number of sites going 
forward, however the viability of these sites for developers had been an issue. Grant 
funding to support re-development of brownfield sites in other areas of the North 
West was raised – the availability of similar schemes in Lancashire would be 
investigated. 
  

89 Technical Consultation on the Environment Outcomes Report 
 
The Planning Policy Manager presented the report and outlined the ambitions of the 
government to introduce a new simpler system under part 6 of the Levelling Up and 
Regeneration Bill. Further regulations are expected to follow, including specific 
details, once the Bill gains royal assent. 
  
The key aims of the new system is to improve the framework after leaving the EU 
system and to standardise the approach, allowing for less duplication across 
different systems. 
  
Access to data was also a driver for the changes, improving access for councils and 
other data holders to support future assessments. 
  
In response to a query raised over the dumping of sewage into rivers and seas, it 
was confirmed that a process of avoidance, mitigation and compensation is in place 
where issues occur. If work undertaken as part of a new development causes 
blockages or other issues then it would be the responsibility of the developer to 
resolve. 
  

90 Technical Consultation on the Infrastructure Levy 
 

Page 6

Agenda Item 6



3 
 

 
Central Lancashire Strategic Planning Joint Advisory Committee Tuesday 20 June 2023 

 

The Principal Planning Officer presented the report outlining the proposed changes 
from the current system of Section 106 obligations and community infrastructure levy 
(CIL) to a mandatory levy to be charged on the final value of the completed 
development. 
  
Further detail was expected from the government on the proposals but the key 
points around securing developer contributions and how it would operate were 
highlighted within the report. 
  
Included in the proposals were changes to how the proportion of affordable housing 
required for each developments would be calculated, with the number required to be 
proportionate to the level of the levy rather than a set percentage of all houses on 
the development site. 
  
The proposals were not expected to be implemented until 2030 with a number of 
authorities undertaking trial periods prior to this. 
  
Concerns were raised whether the proposals would be able to achieve the 
governments aims and the role of the county and borough councils in the delivery 
strategy.  
  

91 Dates of Future Meetings 
 
The dates of the remaining Central Lancashire Strategic Planning Joint Advisory 
Committee meetings for the 2023/2024 year were noted, with the next meeting being 
hosted by Preston on Tuesday 3 October 2023. 
  

92 Exclusion of Press and Public 
 
Resolved (Unanimously) 
  
That the public be excluded from this meeting during consideration of the following 
items of business on the grounds that there is likely to be disclosure of exempt 
information which is described in the paragraphs of Schedule 12A to the Local 
Government Act 1972 which are specified against the heading to each item, and that 
in all the circumstances of the case the public interest in maintaining the exemption 
outweighs the public interest in disclosing it. 
  

93 Public Health Hot Food Takeaway Policy Recommendations 
 
The Chair welcomed Dr Sakthi Karunanithi, Director of Public Health at Lancashire 
County Council and colleagues from the Public Health and Wellbeing team to the 
meeting. 
  
The Director of Public Health presented an update on the impact of hot food 
takeaways on public health and proposed a number of policy suggestions to 
consider as part of the emerging Central Lancashire Local Plan. 
  

94 Transport Update 
 
The Committee were provided an update from the Local Plan Director/Head of 
Spatial Planning on recent transport modelling and assessments commissioned by 

Page 7

Agenda Item 6



4 
 

 
Central Lancashire Strategic Planning Joint Advisory Committee Tuesday 20 June 2023 

 

Lancashire County Council to support the emerging Local Plan and the Central 
Lancashire Highways and Transport Masterplan. 
  

95 Local Plan Update 
 
The Local Plan Director/Head of Spatial Planning provided an update on the 
progress of the emerging Central Lancashire Local Plan, including the current work 
the team are on with, timescales and recruitment to key posts. 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Chair Date 
 

Page 8

Agenda Item 6



  

 

 

Levelling-up and Regeneration Bill: consultation on implementation of plan-
making reforms 
 

Is this report confidential? No  
 

 

Is this decision key? No 
 

 
 
Purpose of the Report 
 
1. To inform members on the recent consultation on the implementation of plan-

making reforms and provide a summary of the changes proposed. 
 
Recommendations  
 
2. To note the contents of the report. 
 
Reasons for recommendations 

 
3. The report does not require any decisions, it is for information only.  
 

Other options considered and rejected. 
 

4. Not applicable, this is a summary of the consultation that is currently out, each 
Council will make its own decision on responding to this. 

 
Summary of the consultation proposals 
 

5. The Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities (DLUHC) 

launched a 12-week consultation on the 25th of July 2023, running until 18th 

October 2023 entitled Levelling-up and Regeneration Bill: Consultation on 

implementation of plan-making reforms.  The consultation is seeking views on a 

Report of Meeting Date 

Director of Development & 
Housing  

Central Lancashire Strategic Planning 
Joint Advisory Comm 

Tuesday 3rd October 

Page 9

Agenda Item 8



proposed new system of plan making and is accompanied by 43 questions 

around the proposed reforms. 

 

6. The consultation states ‘Our vision is for plans to be simpler to engage with and 

use, and more accessible to all users, with better opportunities for communities 

to shape the way their area meets its needs and evolves over time’. 

 

Summary plan-making reforms 

 

7. The consultation is broken down in to 15 chapters addressing each of the 

proposed changes.  Some of which have been considered in the wider LURB 

consultation, with this consultation reinforcing the intention of the Government 

in implementing change. 

 

Plan Content 

 

8. The Government’s ambition is that new-style local plans are simpler, shorter 

and more visual, showing clearly what is planned in local areas so users can 

engage more easily.  They will focus on locally specific matters and the 

development plan, including local plans, neighbourhood plans and other 

statutory plans, will have more weight in decision making. 

 

9. To help achieve this aim, the Levelling Up and Regeneration Bill sets out 

parameters for the content of a new-style local plan.  It requires the local plan to 

set out the local planning authority’s policies for the “amount, type and location 

of, and timetable for, development” in its area. 

 

10. Local planning authorities must ensure that a map, to be known as a “policies 

map”, is prepared and kept up to date, illustrating the geographical application 

of the development plan for the authority’s area. 

 

11. The Bill establishes an overarching requirement for local plans to be designed 

to secure that the use and development of land in the planning authority’s area, 

contributes to the mitigation of, and adaption to, climate change. It also sets out 

key matters that planning authorities must have regard to when preparing 

plans.  These include national development management policies and relevant 

neighbourhood priorities statements. 

 

12. The government is proposing to set out additional core principles around what a 

plan should contain to ensure LPAs focus on the right things and present a 

‘story’ of how the area will develop as a result of the new plan, indicating how 

this will contribute to good place making and environmental enhancement. 

 

13. A key part of this is the requirement to have a locally distinct vision which will 

anchor the plan and provide strategic direction for the underpinning policies and 

set out measurable outcomes for the plan period.  Sustainable development 

Page 10

Agenda Item 8



must also run as golden thread throughout the plan, with growth being directed 

to suitable locations and supported by required infrastructure and good design. 

 

14. The consultation states that new plans will: 

 

 contain ambitious locally distinctive policies which meet key economic, 

social, and environmental objectives, linked to the vision. 

 foster beautiful places and recognise the importance of design, linking to 

design codes where appropriate; and 

 set out a detailed approach to monitoring and ongoing review of the plan, 

for example how key policies and designations are implemented and 

applied, and the extent to which the plan is meeting the overall vision for 

the area. 

 

15. A key diagram must be created for the Local Plan which represents the spatial 

strategy which will deliver the vision.  

 

16. The policies map must be digital, interactive and easily accessible by all users. 

Policies maps should support community and developer engagement, clearly 

visualising core plan policies, allocations and other aspects of the plan and its 

spatial components. 

 

17. A key part of the local plan will be the vision which should set out the main aims 

and objectives of the plan over the plan period, however it is felt currently local 

plan vision fall short and can be too long, generic and do capture the 

uniqueness of an area or the views of communities. 

 

18. Going forward the role of the vision is to be strengthened and genuinely shaped 

by communities through early engagement.  Government proposes to use 

regulations to require the inclusion of a vision in the local and will set out the 

principles in policy LPAs will need to have regard to when prep a vision.  

 

19. The vision should also tie in to other relevant corporate of thematic strategies 

produced by other authorities, public bodies and partnerships.  

 

20. Government is proposing to provide a user-tested digital template which can be 

used by authorities during plan-making.  This will indicate what a vision should 

do and contain.  Exemplars will also be provided to illustrate how visions can be 

used to their full potential. 

 

21. The introduction of national development management policies (NDMP) has 

already been proposed by the LURB and these will be consulted on separately 

and this will streamline plans to focus on genuinely local matters.  The Bill also 

allows for Local development management policies to be included in local 

plans, but they must relate to use or development of land in the LPA’s area and 

not repeat the NDMPs. 

Page 11

Agenda Item 8



 

22. To address the issue of lack of standardisation and consistency of plans a 

series of digital templates are proposed to support councils in drafting their 

plans within the 30-month period, with the intention LPAs will use them as part 

of the plan preparation process. 

 

The new 30-month plan timeframe 

 

23. The Government has set out a 30month timeframe for preparing new local 

plans which they propose strikes the appropriate balance between needing 

plans to be made more quickly and kept up to date more effectively, with a 

realistic view on what is achievable. 

 

24. Figure 1 below shows the process proposed by Government to meet the 30-

month timeframe.  This set outs a 23-month process for plan making and a 

further 6 months for examination, with 1 month allotted for adoption at the end 

of the process. 

 

Figure 1 – Plan making process 

Page 12

Agenda Item 8



 
 

 

25. To ensure plans are delivered in the 30 months, LPAs will be required to 

prepare a Project Initiation Document (PID) using standard template to be 

provided by government.  The PID should:  

 

i. define the scope of the local plan (or minerals and waste plan) and 

identify evidence required to create a sound plan. 

 

ii. identify any local issues likely to be relevant to the plan or environmental 

assessment. 

 

iii. set out the project management, governance, risks to delivery and 

resourcing arrangements; and 

 

iv. outline the overall approach to community and stakeholder engagement. 

 

 

Page 13

Agenda Item 8



26. The PID should also set out how early public participation (scoping stage) has 

informed the direction of the plan.  The proposals requirement for initial 

engagement (outside of the formal 30 months) are outline in the diagram 

above, with this initial engagement taking place prior to formal commencement 

of the plan. Council’s must “notify” and “invite” views on what the plan should 

contain and feedback on key issues that should be addressed.  The PID is 

seen as a key mechanism to distil the key message emerging from these early 

engagement activities as well as addressing any views expressed by 

communities and key stakeholders on how they would like to be engaged 

throughout the process. 

 

27. This stage of the process should enable LPAs to develop a clear understanding 

of the level of commitment required to produce the plan and the key themes 

that will shape it. 

 

28. On commencement of the formal 30 months, the first stage is plan visioning 

and strategy development.  The first gateway assessment would also be 

undertaken at this time.  This stage will include an 8-week consultation period 

to establish the vision, aims and objectives of the local plan, building on the 

work undertaken at the scoping stage.  This work will then help identify the 

evidence needed to underpin the plan. 

 

29. The next phase is evidence gathering and drafting the plan and will include the 

second gateway assessment.  Evidence gathered here should be proportionate 

and relate directly to the tests of soundness. 

 

30. Councils are encouraged to continuously engage with members during this 

stage before the second gateway assessment and should seek final member 

sign off of the local plan prior to public consultation. 

 

31. The Engagement, proposing changes and submission stage then follows. Any 

issues with the plan between the council and statutory consultees will be 

resolved during the mandatory consultation window at this stage, with an 

opportunity to make modifications to the plan prior to the submission. The 

planning authority should seek Member sign-off of any changes and avoid re-

consulting wherever possible prior to the examination. 

 

32. Examination is the penultimate formal stage of the 30-month period.  The final 

gateway assessment will be undertaken prior to submission and will be key to 

achieving the examination is completed within the 6-month period.  Following 

this there is a final month allowed for adoption. 

 

33. Local Plans must be monitored to ensure that key objectives are being met and 

that policies are effective.  A proposed detailed monitoring return, which 

planning authorities would be expected to complete within four years of the plan 

being adopted, would ensure that updates to plans can be more targeted and 

focused. 

Page 14

Agenda Item 8



 

34. Following adoption, there will be a requirement that plans are reviewed every 5 

years.  

 

Digital plans 

 

35. Detail above has already indicated that government intends plan to be more 

digital and to provide Councils with better access to standardised data as set 

out in in the LURB.  As part of this consultation, government is seeking views 

on where there is the greatest need for standardisation, challenges around 

publication and where the best opportunities lie.  They also set out where their 

work has identified how digitisation could help planning and seek views on that, 

this includes standardised formats for local plans, evidence requirements, 

engagement on the plan, an outdated static PDF plans. 

 

36. To help councils, government are proposing a series of templates and tools to 

assist plan making. 

 

Local Plan Timetable 

 

37. Councils still need to prepare a Local Development Scheme (LDS), however 

the format and approval of these is changes under the proposed system. This 

will simplify the content of the LDS which is set out in the LIRB.  LDS’s will also 

not need to be approved by Council which will enable them to be reviewed and 

kept up to date more easily with a requirement for them to be updated at least 

once every 6 months. The key stages of plan making councils will need to 

cover in the LDS include: 

 commencement of Gateway 1 

 first mandatory consultation window (8 weeks) 

 commencement of Gateway 2 

 second mandatory consultation window (6 weeks) 

 commencement of Gateway 3 

 submission for independent Examination 

 anticipated adoption date 

 

38. The LDS will also be required to be produced using digital templates and data 

standards in line with the wider plan making reforms. 

 

Evidence 

 

39. The reforms are considering the requirements and approach to developing the 

evidence base which supports plans.  

 

40. Government are mindful of the need to ensure that reforms to evidence 

improve and do not undermine the quality or effectiveness of policies or plans, 

or the decision-making that relies on them.  The diagram below summarise the 

approach proposed. 

Page 15

Agenda Item 8



 

 
 

41. Following the consultation on removal of the justified test, the government will 

provide more clarity on what evidence is expected and what ‘proportionate’ 

evidence looks like to reduce the amount of evidence required to support a 

local plan. 

 

42. To support this approach, secondary legislation will be prepared to be clear 

what evidence is required for submission and publication.  

 

Gateway assessment during plan-making 

 

43. The proposals seek to introduce gateways assessments, with a requirement for 

3 gateways: 

 at the very beginning of the 30-month process, following work undertaken at 

the scoping stage. 

 part-way through plan preparation (between the two mandatory consultation 

windows) 

 at the end of the plan-preparation process (following the second mandatory 

consultation window), at the point the local planning authority intends to submit 

the plan for independent examination in public. 

 

44. Detail of what the role of gateway assessment is shown below. Only the final 

assessment is mandatory. 

Page 16

Agenda Item 8



 
 

45. Further work is planned to develop a working model for gateways, however 

initial proposals for gateways are as follows: 

 

 Prior to each gateway, the planning authority will prepare a short report 

detailing progress against a series of key topics.  This report will take the 

form of a digital template, provided by government, to ensure a consistent 

and efficient approach but may be accompanied by other cross-referenced 

materials to support the authority’s position. 

 At the first and second gateways, it is expected that the authority will be 

asked to identify up to five issues which pose risks to the soundness and/or 

legal or procedural compliance of the plan; at the third gateway, we 

envisage authorities would be required to complete a ‘statement of 

compliance with legislation and national policy’ template, as proposed 

in Chapter 5. 

 the report and accompanying materials will be submitted to the ‘gatekeeper’ 

by the planning authority, marking the formal commencement of the 

gateway. 

 a person (or persons) will be appointed to undertake the gateway 

assessment as soon as possible.  They will be responsible for reviewing the 

planning authority’s report (and accompanying materials, as deemed 

necessary), and may identify other issues beyond those set out by the 

authority; 

Page 17

Agenda Item 8

https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/plan-making-reforms-consultation-on-implementation/levelling-up-and-regeneration-bill-consultation-on-implementation-of-plan-making-reforms#chapter5


 during the first and second gateways, an interactive workshop day will be 

planned and executed by the appointed person(s) to work through the 

issues identified and provide initial observations and advice to the planning 

authority.  This is unlikely to be necessary for the third gateways, with any 

clarifications to be dealt with via written correspondence between the 

appointed person(s) and the planning authority; and 

 a short report setting out observations relating to progress against key 

requirements and advice in relation to issues will be prepared by the 

appointed person(s) and shared with the planning authority.  This will mark 

the formal end of the gateway and, as per the requirement in the Levelling 

Up and Regeneration Bill, planning authorities must publish this report 

publicly as soon as is reasonably practicable.  We propose that an end of 

gateway report digital template will be provided to planning authorities by 

government to populate at this step of the process. 

 

46. Given gateways will be mandatory for all authorities there is a need to put them 

on a sustainable financial footing, to ensure delivery of a quality and consistent 

approach.  Government therefore propose that gateways are fully funded 

through cost recovery from the planning authority, with a standard fee for each 

gateway defined in regulations. 

 

Examinations 

 

47. As noted already, these should not take longer than 6 months and government 

are working with PINs on changes to the Inspectorate’s procedural guidance on 

local plan examination. 

 

48. Inspectors can pause the local plan examination for a timebound period, this 

will be set out in regulation and must not be longer than 6 months, this will be to 

allow the LPA to undertake any work to address issues identified by the 

Inspector outside the examination process. 

 

Community engagement and consultation 

 

49. Existing practises of engagement and consultation in plan-making are widely 

perceived to be narrow and ineffective.  For many, consultations on plans can 

feel too technical and difficult to engage with, discouraging people from having 

their say whilst disproportionally drawing views from people from a narrow set 

of demographic groups.  Those voices who may benefit most from new 

development are often the quietest in the planning process. 

 

50. Communities must remain at the heart of the plan-making process, and local 

people must have a meaningful say on planning policies that will affect them 

and their local area. 

 

Page 18

Agenda Item 8



51. Proposals want to increase the amount of engagement that takes place during 

plan-making and the opportunities for communities to influence their plan.  The 

reforms on engagement focus on the below: 

 

 the role of digital – has the potential to improve both the quality, quantity 
and diversity of participation within the local plans process, when used in 
combination with traditional methods; 

 planning and monitoring the engagement approach – supported by our 
proposals for a new Project Initiation Document requirement and gateway 
assessments; 

 a focus on early participation – introducing a proposed new requirement 
to “notify” and “invite” participation at the start of the plan-making process, to 
complement the scoping stage and to encourage early and increased 
quality of engagement; and 

 a more standardised approach to consultation - retention of two 
mandatory consultation windows, which will be more clearly defined and 
strengthened through regulations to increase their impact. 

 

52. A Statement of Community Involvement will no longer be required, and 

engagement ambitions will instead be set out in the PID as detailed earlier.  

 

53. Government is proposing to introduce a new requirement, in regulations, for 

planning authorities to “notify” stakeholders and “invite” early participation on 

matters that might shape the direction of the plan.  This will enable increased 

transparency over plan-making timeframes and provide an earlier opportunity 

for relevant persons and/or bodies, which might include communities, statutory 

bodies and neighbouring authorities, to have sight of and to influence the plan-

making process.  The new requirement will sit within the scoping stage, prior to 

commencement of the 30-month process and before the first mandatory 

consultation window. 

 

54. The format of this consultation will be at the discretion of the LPA and the 

government are seeking views on what it should be addressed. 

 

55. In response to some of the existing challenges around formal consultation in 

the current system, government propose that in the new system, the 

regulations governing the two formal consultation windows should: 

 

 define the role and purpose of these windows more clearly, reflecting where 

these sit within the wider end-to-end local plan process; and 

 enable the submission of representations in a form which maintains and 

strengthens accessibility for communities but makes it easier for planning 

authorities to process. 

 

 

 

 

Page 19

Agenda Item 8



Requirement to assist with certain plan-making. 

 

56. The Levelling Up and Regeneration Bill sets out a “Requirement to Assist with 

Certain Plan Making”.  This will give plan making authorities the power to 

legally require that “prescribed public bodies” provide assistance to develop or 

review the local plan, minerals and waste plan, supplementary plan, spatial 

development strategy, infrastructure delivery strategy, marine plan or policies 

map. Regulation will be sued to set out those bodies this applies too, and the 

consultation seeks view on the initial list proposed. 

 

 

Monitoring of plans 

 

57. The Levelling Up and Regeneration Bill provides a power for the government to 

require planning authorities to provide information, on the implementation of 

policies relating to the authority’s area.  They are also required to monitor the 

environmental effects of the implementation of the plan, and once reforms to 

environmental assessment processes are in place, the delivery of specified 

environmental outcomes.  Government intends to use regulations to give clarity 

on the requirements and to set a small number of common metrics to monitor 

implementation of policies.  The Bill also enables the establishment of a 

requirement to monitor the progress of plan preparation, the timings for which 

would be set out through the local plan timetable. 

 

58. Under the new system, the existing AMR approach will be amended and 

instead the following stages imposed: 

 

 a light touch annual return. This will include progress against plan making 

activities proposed in the local plan or minerals and waste plan timetable, 

and as a minimum it will also report on a small number of nationally 

prescribed metrics (see below) to assess the implementation of key policies 

against the output of the plan.  These are intended to remain stable to 

enable the identification of trends over a longer period.  Planning authorities 

will be free to supplement this list with any locally significant metric that they 

choose; and 

 a detailed return to inform updates to the plan. By 4 years after adoption 

of a local plan or minerals and waste plan, at the latest, planning authorities 

should prepare a fuller analysis of how planning policies and designations 

are being implemented, and the extent to which the plan is meeting the 

overall vision for their area.  This may also consider where policies are no 

longer relevant.  The scope and content of this monitoring report is 

proposed to be left to individual planning authorities but should be designed 

to inform the forthcoming update of the plan, which will need to commence 

five years after adoption, at the latest. 

 

 

 

Page 20

Agenda Item 8



Supplementary plans 

 

59. The Levelling Up and Regeneration Bill provides for the creation of new 

supplementary plans.  These plans are intended to be produced at pace to 

enable planning authorities to react and respond positively to unanticipated 

changes in their area separate from the local plan or minerals and waste plan 

preparation process.  This could include allocating and shaping an unexpected 

regeneration opportunity or introducing new site-specific policies including in 

relation to design, infrastructure or affordable housing. 

 

60. Local planning authorities will also be able to use supplementary plans to 

discharge the new Bill requirement to produce an authority-wide design code. 

 

61. The reforms will remove the role of Supplementary Planning Documents and 

Area Action Plans. 

 

62. The Bill places certain limits on the allowable scope of supplementary plans 

(either by subject matter or geographically), so that they do not subvert the role 

of the local plan as the principal planning policy framework for the local 

planning authority’s area. 

 

63. Planning authorities will need to set out any supplementary plans which they 

are to prepare and certain details in the local plan timetable including: the 

subject matter and geographical area, site or sites to which each of those 

supplementary plans is to relate and whether the authority is to prepare a joint 

supplementary plan.  Because they are optional, supplementary plans will not 

have a defined preparation time such as the 30 months proposed for local 

plans and minerals and waste plans. 

 

64. Supplementary plans will undergo formal consultation with communities and 

stakeholders, including statutory bodies and independent examination. 

 

65. The Bill’s approach to the independent examination of supplementary plans is 

broadly modelled upon the existing arrangements for neighbourhood plans 

(which already form part of the development plan once brought into force). 

 

66. The Bill provides two options for the independent examination of supplementary 

plans. Plan-making authorities may submit their draft supplementary plan to the 

Secretary of State, for the examination to be carried out by a person appointed 

by the Secretary of State, or to an examiner of the authority’s choosing who is 

an independent, impartial person and who is suitably qualified. 

 

67. For especially large, complex, or locally contentious supplementary plans, 

government suggest it might be more appropriate for the examination to be 

carried out by a person appointed by the Secretary of State.  This is due to the 

additional resources and expertise that that the Planning Inspectorate can call 

Page 21

Agenda Item 8



upon, and because the Bill sets out that where supplementary plans are 

adopted, this must be with modifications recommended by examiners. 

 

68. With these matters in mind, government are keen to hear views on whether 

they should set thresholds to guide the decision that authorities make about the 

choice of which supplementary plan examination route to follow. 

 

69. Existing SPD’s will remain in force until a new style local Plan is adopted. 

 

Approach to roll out and transition. 

 

70. Government remains committed to the key milestones set out in the LURB, 

subject to Royal Assent of the Bill.  In the consultation government state, the 

following: 

 

“We confirm our intention that the latest date for plan-makers to submit local 

plans, minerals and waste plans, and spatial development strategies for 

examination under the current system will be 30 June 2025. We also confirm 

our intention that those plans will, in general, need to be adopted by 31 

December 2026.  As referred to above, these dates are contingent upon Royal 

Assent of the Levelling Up and Regeneration Bill, as well as Parliamentary 

approval of the relevant regulations.  However, we are setting this out now to 

provide planning authorities with as much notice as possible of these dates.” 

 

71. Government confirms their intention to have in place the regulations, policy and 

guidance by autumn 2024 to enable the preparation of the first new-style local 

plans and minerals and waste plans. 

 

72. The consultation is also seeking views on the approach to roll out of the new 

style local plans, with an initial small cohort of around 10 “front runner” 

authorities.  This will ensure there is a strong foundation of learning and best 

practice for other authorities to draw upon. 

 

73. The first cohort of local planning authorities, the “front runners” could start plan-

making from autumn 2024. 

 

74. Remaining authorities would then be ranked by date of most recently adopted 

plan and placed in groups of up to 25 authorities each allocated a 6-month 

plan-making commencement window (a wave) within which plan making should 

start. 

 

Next Steps  

 

75. The three Councils are each preparing their individual response to this 

Consultation and will continue to review and respond to further updates to this 

process as they are released.  

 

Page 22

Agenda Item 8



Climate change and air quality 
 

3. The work noted in this report has an overall positive impact on the Councils 

Carbon emissions and the wider Climate Emergency and sustainability targets 

of the Council. 

 

4. The report impacts on the following activities in a positive way although details 

of specific benefits is to evolve as further guidance on the planning reforms 

emerge:  

a. net carbon zero by 2030,  
b. air quality,  
c. flooding risks,  
d. green areas and biodiversity.  

 
Equality and diversity 

 

5. The government has published an EIA along with the consultation. There are 

no implications at this stage as we are not yet preparing a new style local plan.  

 

Risk 

 

6. The proposals for the plan making reforms are still being formulated. There is 

the potential for additional work for the Councils to carry out in regard to 

implementing the reforms when introduced, which could require further 

resources for the planning teams given the shorter time period for plan 

preparation and digital ask, however this is unknown at this time. 

 

Background documents  
There are no background papers to this report. 

 
Appendices  
There are no appendices. 
 
Report Author: Email: Telephone: Date: 

Carolyn Williams  c.williams@preston.gov.uk 01772906732 22.9.23 

 

Page 23

Agenda Item 8



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 25

Agenda Item 12
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 31

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	Central Lancashire Strategic Planning Joint Advisory Committee - Tuesday, 3rd October, 2023
	Central Lancashire Strategic Planning
	Joint Advisory Committee
	Agenda

	6 Minutes of meeting Tuesday, 20 June 2023 of Central Lancashire Strategic Planning Joint Advisory Committee
	8 Plan Making Reforms: Consultation on Implementation
	12 Local Plan Update
	Site Selection Flowchart (without table)


